Legal and Governance

N\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

THE MAYOR AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR
ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND PUBLIC HEALTH

Date: Wednesday, 17 July 2024
Time: 10.00 a.m.
Venue: Spencer Room, Town Hall

AGENDA

1. Productivity in Local Government - A Response to the 3-16
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Tuesday, 9 July 2024

MEMBERSHIP

Mayor C Cooke
Assistance in accessing information

Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information
please contact Chris Lunn, 01642 729742, chris_lunn@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 1

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

Middles%gh

moving forward

' Report of:

' Chief Executive - Clive Heaphy

Relevant Executive
Member:

The Mayor and Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Public
Health - Chris Cooke

Submitted to: Individual Executive Member Decision-Making Meeting - The Mayor
and Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health
' Date: | 17 July 2024
Title: Productivity in Local Government: A Response to the Department for
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
' Report for: ' Decision
 Status: ' Public

Council Plan priority:

Delivering Best Value

Key decision:

No

Why:

Decision does not reach the threshold to be a key decision

Subject to call in?

No

Why:

Plans must be submitted to Government by 19 July 2024.

Proposed decision(s)

That the proposed productivity plan, attached to this report at Appendix 1 is agreed and
submitted to government.

Executive summary

On 16 April 2024, the then Minister for Local Government, Simon Hoare MP, wrote to all Local
Authority Chief Executives, asking councils to produce productivity plans as part of the terms of
the Local Government Finance Settlement. Productivity plans are also required under the
conditions accepted by the Council in relation to the in-principle agreement of £13.4m of
Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) which was applied for to enable a legally balanced budget
to be agreed at its meeting on 8 March 2024.

This report sets out the proposed productivity plan for the Council, attached at Appendix 1. The
draft productivity plan provides the context for savings made to date, the demands on services
and the focus of the Council’s resources on transformation, performance management, use of
data, working with partners and transforming our workforce.

Page 3




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the Council’s approach to improving its productivity, that
is already embedded within its current plans to transform and improve service delivery.
Activities to do this are embedded within the Council Plan, the Council’s Transformation
Programme, People Strategy, Section 24 Action Plan and Corporate Governance Improvement
Plan.

1.2 The report also proposes a draft productivity plan for the Council, which, if agreed, will be
submitted to government for consideration. Progress against the plan will be embedded within
the quarterly performance and budget outturn reports to Executive.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the proposed productivity plan, attached to this report at Appendix 1 is agreed and
submitted to government.

3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

3.1 Adoption of a productivity plan has been made a requirement of the 2024/25 Local Government
Financial Settlement.

4. Background and relevant information

4.1 On 16 April 2024, the then Minister for Local Government, Simon Hoare MP, wrote to all Local
Authority Chief Executives, asking councils to produce productivity plans which was announced
as part of the Local Government Finance Settlement. Productivity plans are also required as
under the conditions accepted by the Council when it accepted the ‘in principle approval of
£13.4m of Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) to enable a legally balanced budget to be set
for 2024/25.

4.2 Appendix 1 sets out the Council’s proposed response to this request. The Council’s draft
productivity plan reflects that it, and other local authorities have been successfully delivering
year on year improvements to productivity since 2010. Middlesbrough Council launched its first
Change Programme to deliver savings and reconfigure services in 2014.

4.3 Since that time, two further iterations of change programmes have been delivered successfully,
seeing the Council move from an operating budget of £133.6m in 2010 to £126.354m in
2023/24, while also managing significant increases in costs incurred to deliver services,
demand, and complexity of need in key areas while also managing a real term cut in funding.
While Middlesbrough has had a cash increase in Core Spending Power from 2010/11 to
2024/25, it has actually suffered a £62.1m (25.6%) cumulative ‘real terms’ cut in Core
Spending Power from 2010/11 to 2024/25 based on 2023/24 prices, equating to a ‘real term
cut’ of £958.5 per dwelling:

Real terms cuts Cash terms cuts
Cum. Cut14 Percentage real £ per dwelling Cash Percentage Cash Increasef
years 10-11to term cut real term cut |increasef/cut 14  cash term Cut 10-11to 24
24-25 at 2023-24 years 10-11to  increasef cut 25 Per dwelling
Local authority prices 24-25
£m % £ pd £m % £ pd
England -13,902.2 -18.1% -356.4 8,723.0 15.7% 349.1
Middlesbrough -62.1 -25.6% -058.5 8.6 4.7% 132.4
SIGOMA -4,765.0 -23.3% -756.3 1,193.7 7.9% 189.46

Page 4



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

4.4 As well as transformation of service delivery, cessation of services and reducing service
delivery levels, the Council has significantly reduced its staffing levels. The diagram below
shows the councils FTE level reductions since 2009, in comparison to trend data for the Civil
Service:

Civil Service FTE levels and trend data Middlesbrough Council FTE levels and trend
(2009 - 2023) data (2012-2023)
-

——— Total Middlesbrough LA

Employees (FTE)

NN < N O NN 00 00 O 3 NN M

oA d A A d A d NN NN NN

q pes f ot @ @ o Q1 Q = O O O O O O O O O O o o o o o o

N N AN AN N AN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN

Source: Institute for Government analysis of ONS, Public Sector Employment Data (Table 9), Q1 2009 to Q4 2023. @ e N N d < 0o N d < o0 N A < NN S
O g go0odogdgogoggogogagogogdagda

4.5 At the same time, the Council has seen increases in costs and demand for services, in
particular, the rise in pressure from social care related expenditure over the last 14 years is
clearly evidenced within this document. 82% of net revenue expenditure is now spent on
Children’s and Adult care, up from 40% in 2010/11.

4.6 The Council’s financial position remains critical given that it required Exceptional Financial
Support in order to set a balance budget for 2024/25. It has run down its unrestricted usable
revenue reserves in recent years particularly due to spending pressures in children’s care. The
2024/25 MTFP sets out further ambitious but essential savings plans totalling £13.910m in
2024/25, rising to £21.028m by 2026/27 which need to be delivered to recover the Council’s
financial position.

4.7 2024/25 savings equate to 11% of the 2023/24 Net Revenue Budget, rising to 16.6% in
2026/27. These plans are to be delivered through the Recover, Reset, Deliver Transformation
Portfolio. The Council faces a further challenge to close the remaining budget gap of £7.474m
in 2025/26 rising to £7.965m in 2026/27 and return to financial sustainability. Therefore, further
productivity gains are essential.

4.8 The appended draft productivity plan provides the context for savings made to date, the
demands on services and the focus of the Council’s resources on transformation, performance
management, use of data and transforming our workforce.

5. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended

5.1 Not applicable.

6. Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

6.1 Financial (including procurement and Social Value)

There are no direct financial implications arising from the Productivity Plan, however it sets out

the action being taken to drive further efficiencies that are required in order to deliver a
balanced budget.

Page 5 3



6.2 Legal

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

There is a government expectation that the Council will put this plan in place. Regardless, the
Council has a statutory duty to ensure Best Value, by ensuring it has the effective
arrangements in place across the seven Best Value themes:

6.3 Risk

Leadership

Partnerships and
Community
Engagement

Governance

Continuous
Improvement

Service Delivery Culture

Use of Resources

Provision of a productivity plan has been requested as part of the local government financial
settlement. Provision of this document will support effective management of the following risks
within the Strategic Risk Register:

Risk
Ref

Title and Description

SRR-
01

Failure to set a legal and balanced annual budget and to maintain a
sustainable Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP):

The Council is required to set a legally balanced revenue budget by 11 March in
advance of each forthcoming financial year. Failure to achieve this objective will
require the s151 Officer to issue a statutory s114 Notice to the Council.

The Council has a best value duty to set and maintain a sustainable and balanced
Medium Term Financial Plan including maintenance of its reserves position to
demonstrate financial resilience to be able to respond to unforeseen and complex
financial challenges presented by the wider economic environment.

SRR-
09

Corporate Governance arrangements are not fit for purpose:

If the Council’'s Corporate Governance arrangements are not fit for purpose and
appropriate action is not taken to rectify this at pace, this could result in censure
from the Council’s auditors within a public interest report that would damage the
Council’s reputation and / or result in government formal intervention, including
removal of powers from officers and members and direction of council spend.

SRR-
13

Failure to deliver transformation successfully:

If the Council fails to transform its service delivery model to a model that can deliver
outcomes for residents at a reduced cost base, then the Council’s financial position
will become untenable and may result in the issuing of a S114 Notice.

6.4 Human Rights, Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) and Community Cohesion

There are no direct implications for human rights, the PSED or community cohesion as a result of

this report.

Page 6 4




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

6.5 Climate Change / Environmental

There are no direct implications for the environment or climate change as a result of this report.

6.6 Children and Young People Cared for by the Authority and Care Leavers

There are no direct implications for this group as a result of this report.

6.7 Data Protection

There are no direct implications for data protection as a result of this report.

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Action Responsible Officer Deadline
Submit the agreed Productivity Head of Governance, Policy and Information | 19/07/2024
Plan to government

Appendices

'1 | Draft Productivity plan

Background papers
Body Report title Date
Council Corporate Governance Improvement Plan update 18/09/2023
Council Council Plan 8/3/2024
Council 2024/25 Revenue budget, Medium Term Financial Plan, Council | 8/3/2024

Tax setting and Treasury Management

Council Approach to Transformation of Middlesbrough Council 27/03/2024
Council Transformation of Middlesbrough Council 24/04/2024

Contact: Ann-Marie Johnstone, Head of Governance, Policy and Information

Email: ann-marie_johnstone@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Middlesbrough Council 2024 Productivity Plan

Context

5. Since austerity and ongoing budget constraints, the Council’s core spending power has been
negatively impacted. While Middlesbrough has had a cash increase in Core Spending Power
from 2010/11 to 2024/25 it has actually suffered a £62.1m (25.6%) cumulative ‘real terms’ cut
in Core Spending Power from 2010/11 to 2024/25 based on 2023/24 prices, equating to a ‘real
term cut’ of £958.5 per dwelling:

Real terms cuts Cash terms cuts

Cum. Cut14 Percentage real £ per dwelling Cash Percentage Cash Increasef
years 10-11to term cut real term cut |increase/cut 14 cash term Cut 10-11 to 2
24-25 at 2023-24 years 10-11te  increasefcut 25 Per dwelling

Local authority prices 24-25
£m % £ pd £m % fpd

England -13,902.2 -18.1% -556.4 8,723.6 15.7% 349.1
Middlesbrough -62.1 -25.6% -058.5 8.6 4.7% 132.4

SIGOMA -4,765.0 -23.3% -756.3 1,193.7 7.9% 189.46

6. Middlesbrough Council has suffered a significant reduction in general Government funding in
the form of RSG and Business Rates Top Up Grant, with a reduction of £35.6m (44%) from
£81.2m received in 2013/14 to £45.6m in 2024/25. This does not take into account inflation.

Core Spending Power per year 2013/14 to 2024/25

7. The graph below, sets out the total revenue budget position of the Council for every year since

2010:

Year £m
2010/11 133.6
2011/12 136.508
2012/13 133.588
2013/14 140.401
2014/15 130.6
2015/16 119.917
2016/17 115.912
2017/18 113.669
2018/19 111.285
2019/20 111.926
2020/21 116.397

Page 9



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

2021/22 116.492
2022/23 118.329
2023/24 126.354
2024/25 143.190

8. At the same time, the Council has seen increases in costs and increases in demand for
services, in particular, the rise in pressure from social care related expenditure over the last 14
years is clearly evidenced within this document. 82% of net revenue expenditure is now spent
on Children’s and Adult care, up from 40% in 2010/11:

= In 2010, the share of the net revenue budget allocated to children’s care was 13%. In
2024/25 this was 42%. The number of children cared for by the authority by the authority
continues to be higher than the national average and the costs associated with provision of
this care have risen. At 31 March 2024 there were 513 children in the Council’s care,
compared to 440 in 2026/17and 310 in 2010. During this time, numbers peaked at 619.
The Council has successfully delivered improvements to practice, and early intervention
and it is continuing to focus on both elements to reduce numbers further, however even
with reduced numbers of children that need to be cared for by the Council to keep them
safe, the cost of care has risen significantly. This is a national issue, and the average cost
of care has been in the region of £4,000 per week. Childrens needs within Middlesbrough
are complex and on occasion specialist placements are required to meet complex need.
Where external placements are provided to some children these costs are significantly high.

= In 2010 Adult Social Care services equated to 27% of the Council’s net revenue budget. In
2024/25 this is now 40%. This area has also experienced significant increases in demand
for services, with contacts for referrals rising from 17,898 in 2017 to 22,536 in 2023. Within
these overall demand rises, the Council is seeing an increase in the complexity of need
from those who meet the thresholds for access to services, alongside increased costs of
care in the care market.

= The Council has also seen increased demand for home to school transport driven by an
increase of more children with additional needs entering the education system in
Middlesbrough. Approximately 15% of the overall school’s population has additional needs,
which is higher than both the northeast and England average and proportionally impacts the
number of children who are entitled to home to school transport to special schools.

9. This increasing percentage spend on Children’s and Adults care has significantly reduced the
Council’s capacity to deliver the remaining statutory duties it has.

10. In the last 14 years the Council has significantly reduced its staffing levels. The diagram below
shows the councils FTE level reductions since 2012, in comparison to trend data for the Civil
Service:

Civil Service FTE levels and trend data Middlesbrough Council FTE levels and trend
(2009 - 2023) data (2012-2023)

Civil servants (FTE), Q1 2009 to Q4 2023

Total Middlesbrough LA
Employees (FTE)

4,400
3,400 _\A-\\

2,400
A4 A dHddHdd NN NN NN
g OO O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0O0OO0OO O o o
. : H 5 o o N NNNNNNNCNNNNNNNA
N N A < 0N d < 0N N A < NN S
s Institute for Government analysis of ONS, Public S mploy ta ( ) Q to @ @ OO0 o0gdo0go0gogogogod

-U
Q
«Q
®
=
o
~



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Transformation

11.

12.

£fm

13.

14.

15.

In order to manage the impact of rising demand and challenging year on year budget positions,
since 2014 the Council has successfully delivered three rounds of transformation, change and
savings programmes.

Since 2010 the Council has delivered £122m in savings from these previous Transformation
Programmes:

Total use of Savings from 2010/11 - 2023/24

M Increase M Decrease M Total

£140m

£9m

£120m

£100m

£80m

£60m

£40m

£20m

-£122m

£0m
Inflation Growth/Demand Government/Grant Reductions TOTAL SAVINGS

Category
Examples of transformation delivered during this time include:

= Exploring outsourcing and public private partnerships to reduce costs while protecting
service delivery in back-office services and provision of leisure facilities.

= Transformed our customer services model to increase online transactions.

= Significant service reconfiguration.

= Significant reductions to staffing and built assets.

In 2024, a transformation programme, ‘Recover, Reset, Deliver was designed and
implemented, taking effect from 1 April 2024.

The diagram below sets out progress made since this Transformation Programme was
established and the associated governance around it, stood up:

Page 11 8



Initial Scoping & Assurance Foundation Setting & Mobilisation Reporting & Assurance Framework
Nov / Dec-23 Jan/ Feb-24 Mar /Apr-24

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Initial Scoping

« Existing and new budget proposals
grouped into thematic areas and
categorised (transformation, continuous
improvement, or quick win).

« Initial view of emerging transformation
themes identified

« Exploration of cross cutting themes
(Customer, Neighbourhoods, ICT)

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Assurance of Savings/Income Targets:

+ Reviewed, checked, and challenged
existing budget proposals for assurance

» Updated R2 Budget Proposals.

+ New ideas developed as Programme on
a Page

« Programme Overview Workbooks
developed for each thematic area

Mobilised PMO & Transformation

Portfolio:

« Consolidated emerging portfolio into six
themes

« Established governance structure

Transformation Portfolio Governance:

« New portfolio governance functions
mobilised (supported by existing PPM
framework)

Reporting & Assurance Framework
developed:

« Enhanced Project Workbook and
Highlight Report

« Programme Highlight Report

+ Programme Health Check Tool

« Portfolio Summary Tracker

Programme Reporting Cycle:
« Developed and communicated new

monthly programme reporting
guidance and calendar.

* Programme milestone finalised for

each thematic area (end of May).

» Programme Highlight reporting in

place (June onwards).

Successful Council-wide transformation of the organisation is integral to delivering the Council
Plan 2024-27, recovering its financial position and returning to financial sustainability, through
development of new approaches to the design of service delivery, driving improved controls
and efficiencies, implementation of effective demand management measures as part of the
wider governance improvement arrangements currently in play.

The Council is committed to adopting innovative approaches in the design and delivery of
services, encompassing new strategies, partnerships and collaborative efforts with

stakeholders.

As well as further staffing reductions, the approach to transformation will require investment
into new technologies and ways of working. Services will be modernised to make them as

efficient as possible, ensuring the best outcomes for residents. Work is underway to assess the
layers of management within the Council, ensuring that staffing structure and levels are
appropriate and will deliver effective services.

The Transformation Portfolio is structured around six themed programmes. These programmes
encompass a range of activities, key business changes, and complex projects aimed at
addressing the emerging challenges and opportunities.

The scope of the Transformation Programme and its associated investment provides
assurance on and aims to secure the delivery of all the savings of £21.028m approved by
Council at its budget meeting on 8 March 2024. The investment in the resource required to
physically deliver, such as programme management, finance expertise and subject matter
experts, will support the Council in delivering all approved savings.

The Thematic Programmes seek to achieve the Council Plan objectives through modernising
the services that the Council delivers and enhancing the Council’s performance to be on a par

with similar councils.

Page 12



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Placebased Target Operating

Adults Children’s Property Customer = Model and Core
Services "
Services
Improved efficiency of Improved efficiency of A review of Council's Transfornjat[on of the A review of service Design and
current systems and current systems, asset holdings to organisation’s accessibility to allow implementation of a
transformation of transformation of Identify short-term approach to engaging more focused dellvery Target Operation
delivery model through dellvery model through opportunities to with our customers and better meet the Model, alongside a
enhanced early enhanced early help maximise generation of and implementation needs of residents, review of the
intervention, use of and prevention, revenue and capital of a customer-centric alongside management structure
digital technologies, development of new receipts to support end-to-end journey transformation of the to ensure stability and
increased reablement models of placement organisational enabled through a | Counci's approach to delivery of core
and review of provision and increased transformation. Behavi g community engagement enabling service-related
a6coRmodalion offer: in-house fostering ehavioural change. with the public. savings.
capacity.
Programme P m Programme P i Programme Pr o
Sponsor: ;ogra n?e Sponsor: ;ogram 'e Sponsor: sogram .e
Director of Adult PONSOr: Director of ponsor: Director of ponsor:

Director Finance
(S151 Officer)

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Legal and

Environment and
Governance

Communities

Social Care and
Health Integration

Regeneration and
Culture

22. £21.088m of savings and income generation opportunities were identified to be realised
between 2024/05 and 2026/27 and agreed as part of the 2024/25 budget setting process. All
live projects are at different stages of development; some delivering to the £21.088m savings
agreed as part of the approved 2024/25 budget with others being developed to deliver a furth

er

pipeline of transformation, change and savings that will be deliverable in 2025/26 and over the

longer-term as a part of work to ensure the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan can be
balanced.

23. “New ideas” for further and longer-term transformation are proposed through the
Transformation governance arrangements, setting out timelines and expectations for formal
decision-making, as a proactive measure to address any budget deficit.

24. Becoming financially sustainable requires transformation of service delivery models to operate
from a lower cost base. To succeed, the Council needs to invest in digital solutions as well as

increasing capability, capacity, and expertise to support the successful delivery of the
Transformation Programme.

Performance Management

25. The Council continues to have in place performance management arrangements that ensure
compliance with the best practice cycle of ‘plan, deliver, review, revise’ is embedded at all
levels of its performance management cycle and governance structure.

26. The structure demonstrates a ‘golden thread’ from the ambitions set out in its Council Plan, a
the way through the supporting service plans, financial plans and workforce plans. This
includes tracking delivery of activity and impact on Key Performance Indicators that support
assessment of whether activity is having its intended impact. Included within this cycle are a
range of direct and indirect measures that can be linked to productivity, including but not
exclusive to:

= Delivery of savings.

» Progress against delivery of Council Plan priorities and initiatives.
= Programme and project management portfolio delivery.

» Staff sickness data.

= Caseload data.

= Satisfaction surveys.

= Assessment of delivery against objectives.

Data and Analytics

27. The Council has had an Information Strategy in place since 2018, which is being refreshed in

2024. The Information Strategy assesses data quality and identifies a range of actions to

Page 13

10



28.

20.

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

improve data quality. The second Information Strategy will build on the achievements of the
previous strategy which focussed on the organisation and transformation of data, delivering
use of Business Intelligence to improve data led decision-making and process efficiency. The
refreshed version will focus on improving compliance with data quality standards, improving
availability of data for lawful use and reuse and further improving data transparency.

The Council shares data with a range of organisations on a daily basis, where there is a lawful
basis to do so. The focus on data sharing is on fulfilling statutory duties and having a positive
impact on outcomes for our residents.

The Council publishes data on its Open Data website. It also presents data to members
regularly on the impact its activities, as set out in the Council’s Plan, are having on a series of
KPls.

Ensuring services meet the needs of all our residents

30.

31.

Ensuring services meet the needs of all residents, improves outcomes for all. The Council is
committed to ensuring its staff have the skills and experience to be able to identify where
needs may differ, and provision altered to ensure everyone has the potential to achieve the
same outcomes and that the services that they receive are fair.

As part of this, the Council undertakes training for staff on their statutory obligations and
delivers this alongside staff networks. Delivery of an inclusive culture is one of the strands in
the Council’s People Strategy as the Council recognises the benefits that effective approaches
to Equality, Diversity and Inclusion can bring, which can be measured through a range of
measures including staff and customer satisfaction, complaint volumes and type, sickness
levels.

Workforce

32.

33.

34.

35.

Nationally councils have struggled to recruit staff in key areas where there is significant market
competition for services and a resulting need to rely on agency staff. This is a particular
challenge for Children’s social worker posts and the Council welcome planned government
intervention to reduce agency costs.

Overall, the Council continues to focus on reducing wider agency and consultancy costs and
restricting use to areas where value can be added through short term capacity.

The Council has delivered significant reductions in the number of senior posts that are held by
agency or interim staff as part of its corporate governance improvement plan.

The figure reduced from 11 in October 2022 to 3 in June 2024 and there are plans in place,
endorsed by a full Council decision, to reduce this further by March 2025 through recruitment to
the Chief Executive and Section 151 officer posts which are currently occupied by agency staff.

Barriers to progress

36.

The rise in pressure from social care related expenditure over the last 14 years is clearly
evidenced within this document, with 82% of net revenue expenditure now directed and
Children’s and Adult care, up from 40% in 2010/11. This reflects the poor state of the social
care market and system for both adults and children’s care and that government intervention is
needed on this matter. The Council would welcome steps from the government to address this
in order to enable to the Council be better deliver its leader of place role.

Page 14 11



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

37. The Council would welcome a return to multi-year financial settlements and an end to
competitive grant applications as two of the steps that could be taken to improve financial
certainty within local government funding and to also ensure that funding is targeted on the
basis of need to reflect that funding for local government is insufficient to enable councils to
deliver all required services. An issue compounded by year-on-year real term cuts. Where
capital grant funding is awarded, the most deprived councils are less able to take full
advantage of it without supporting revenue streams. It would welcome a revised approach on
this matter

38. The Council would also welcome a return to earlier announcements of funding settlements to
support good planning processes. Reform of the Council Tax system is also much needed to
address the inherent unfairness of the system which sees councils in more affluent areas
receiving a much higher level of resource from Council Tax, compared to a deprived area like
Middlesbrough.

39. Delays in the Fair Funding review and the Business Rates reforms must be addressed at pace
by government.

40. It is the opinion of the Section 151 officer that reserves levels, while improved in 2024/5,
remain at a critically low level.

41. The Council would also welcome a review of government reporting requirements to reduce
bureaucracy and waste in those processes.

Next steps

42. Detailed activity to deliver productivity is already well embedded within the Council Plan 2024-
27, Transformation Programme, People Strategy, Information Strategy and delivery of the
Corporate Governance Improvement Plan (CGIP). The action below pulls out the key
productivity activity within those documents:

Activity Source document Target Owner
date
Increase the amount of reablement Council Plan 2024- March Director of Adults
provided to reduce the need for ongoing 27 2025 Social Care and
care Public Health
Develop an enhanced range of Council Plan 2024- March Director of Adults
accommodation and support options for 27 2026 Social Care and
adults with a learning disability to promote Public Health
independence and reduce the reliance on
residential care provision
Implementation of a transformed customer | Council Plan 2024- March Director of Finance
model to improve customer outcomes and 27 2027
savings
Develop and implement an approach to Council Plan 2024- October Chief Executive
achieve organisational change through the | 27 2026
implementation of a transformation portfolio
of programmes and projects
Implementation of a People Strategy to Council Plan 2024- October Director of Legal
underpin transformation 27, People Strategy 2026 and Governance
and CGIP Services
Refresh the Information Strategy Council Plan 2024- July 2024 | Director of Legal
27 and Information and Governance
Strategy Services
Remodel the Council’s planning service to Council Plan 2024- March Director of
reflect increasing demand, complexity, 27 2027 Regeneration

Page 15

12




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

recruitment and retention difficulties to
improve customer service

43. Progress against these plans, strategies and programme is already measured and reported on
to Members. Impacts on Key Performance Indicators that are relevant to the theme of

productivity are embedded with these progress reports, which include.

against allocated budget

KPI / Metric Update frequency
% of sickness hours lost per hours available Quarterly

Staff turnover Quarterly
Appraisal completion rates Annual

Budget and Performance outturns - % of activity on track and performance Quarterly

Page 16

13




	Agenda
	1 Productivity in Local Government - A Response to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
	Appendix 1 - Draft Productivity Plan


